
D E VE L OPM E NT  PL AN  R E VI EW  BO AR D  
M I N U TE S 

October 24, 2013 at 8:30 A.M. 
245 EAST BONITA AVENUE 

CITY COUNCIL CONFERENCE ROOM, CITY HALL 
 
 
                        PRESENT 
  

Scott Dilley, Chamber of Commerce 
Shari Garwick, Senior Engineer 
Blaine Michaelis, City Manager 
Jim Schoonover, Planning Commission 
John Sorcinelli, Public Member at Large 

                       Larry Stevens, Assistant City Manager of Community Development  
 
ABSENT 
 
Emmett Badar, City Council 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Jim Schoonover called the regular meeting of the Development Plan Review Board to order at 8:30 
a.m. so as to conduct regular business in the City Council Conference Room. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
MOTION:  Jim Schoonover moved, seconded by Larry Stevens to approve the September 26, 2013 
minutes.  Motion carried 4-0-1-2 (Badar Absent and Garwick and Dilley Abstain). 
 
MOTION:  Jim Schoonover moved, seconded by Larry Stevens to approve the October 10, 2013 
minutes.  Motion carried 5-0-1-1 (Badar Absent and Michaelis Abstain). 
 
DPRB Case No. 13-04 
 
A request to construct a 127 – square foot addition to a historic single-family residence and to 
legalize a 325 – square foot patio attached to a detached 634 – square foot two car garage located 
at 309 W. 2nd Street in the Single-Family Downtown Residential (SF-DR) Zone and Historic Town 
Core.  
 
APN:  8386-014-030 
 
Zone: Single-Family Downtown Residential 
 
Richard Reed, applicant and property owner of 309 W. 2nd. Street, was present. 
 
Associate Planner Williams stated that the request is to construct a proposed 127 sq. ft. addition to 
an existing 1,077 sq. ft. historic single-family residence. It has an existing residence located 
approximately 21 feet from the front property line and a detached garage that takes access from the 
alley at the rear of the site. The house was constructed in 1911 and is on the City’s Historic 
Resources Inventory.  It is California Bungalow style and has a rectangular plan, main side-facing 



DPRB Minutes  Page 2 
October 24, 2013 
 
 
medium-pitched (7/12) gable roof and offset front gable.  It is covered with a composition shingle roof 
and medium exposure horizontal HardiePlank clapboard siding and it rests on a concrete perimeter 
foundation which is finished with natural river rock.  There is a slight flare where the siding meets the 
foundation.  The residence features open eaves with decorative knee-braces and exposed rafter 
tails.  Horizontal slatted vents are located under the gable ends. 
 
She stated that proposed addition is located on the west side of the property.  She noted that the 
majority of the house has HardiePlank siding with the exception of the area for the proposed 
addition. The addition is located on the west side of the property which would have a gable roof that 
correlates to the existing main gable in terms of pitch and scale, with the same decorative knee 
braces, exposed rafters, and decorative roof vent incorporated.  The addition would be finished in 
the same HardiePlank siding with the same color and exposure.  It would incorporate natural stone 
on the foundation to match the existing and include the same flare where the siding meets the 
foundation.  The proposed addition is also consistent with the design standards of the Historic Town 
Core Residential Guidelines.   
 
She added that the applicant also needs to legalize a 325 sq. ft. patio attached to a detached 634 sq. 
ft. two-car garage.   She noted that it is not necessary for DPRB approval but is being reviewed in 
conjunction with the request and with permits since it has already been constructed.  She stated that 
they need to obtain a permit.  
 
Mr. Stevens mentioned that the Staff Report indicated the windows were changed out back in 2002.  
He asked if the house has been resided with HardiePlank siding and if the porch has been modified 
with permits.   
 
Associate Planner Williams responded that the windows were changed out by the previous owner, 
there was no permit for the siding modifications and the porch had notes from a previous DPRB 
meeting but no record of all modifications. 
 
Mr. Stevens asked if the original house had wood siding and the HardiePlank replaced it. 
 
Associate Planner Williams replied yes.  She added that there was a permit to enclose the porch in 
1949. 
 
Mr. Sorcinelli pointed out that the drawings do not show flared siding. 
 
Associate Planner Williams commented that the flare siding is minimal but is depicted on the 
elevations. 
 
Mr. Sorcinelli commented that the photos depict traditional skirted. 
 
Associate Planner Williams stated that they represent a slight skirt. 
 
Mr. Sorcinelli stated that Staff should ask the applicant to reproduce the plans to reflect the historical 
features of the home.  He recommended that the plans be depicted accurately when they submit to 
the Board, especially since this is a architectural review board. 
 
Associate Planner Williams stated that she will make sure the features are prominent in the plan 
check phase.          
 
Eric Beilstein, Building Official, asked if the applicant will be incorporating natural stone. 
 



DPRB Minutes  Page 3 
October 24, 2013 
 
 
Associate Planner Williams responded yes and added it will adhere to the foundation. 
 
Mr. Sorcinelli asked if there is concrete footing. 
 
Richard Reed, applicant and property owner of 309 W. 2nd. Street, responded there is no building on 
rock and noted it is all river rock sided concrete foundation.  He noted that he does not want to use 
imitation stone so it will be all natural.  He added that it will look just like the existing foundation and 
stated he will personally pick out each stone. 
 
MOTION:  Larry Stevens moved, second by Scott Dilley to approve, subject to conditions of approval. 
  
Motion carried 6-0-1-0 (Badar Absent) 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 8:42 a.m. to the meeting of November 
14, 2013 at 8:30 a.m.  

  
 
 
 
          _______________________________  
          Jim Schoonover, Chairman 
          San Dimas Development Plan Review Board 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jessica Mejia 
Development Plan Review Board 
Departmental Assistant 
 
Approved:   


